
 

Download this agenda via the free modern.gov app on your iPad, Android Device 
or Blackberry Playbook.  For information relating to this meeting or to request a 

copy in another format or language please contact: 
June Gurry, Town Hall, Castle Circus, Torquay, TQ1 3DR  

 

Email: governance.support@torbay.gov.uk - www.torbay.gov.uk  

 (1) 

 

 
 

Wednesday, 16 September 2020 
 

Meeting of the Council 
 

Dear Member 
 

I am pleased to invite you to attend a meeting of Torbay Council which will be held remotely via 
Zoom (the links to the meeting are set out below) on Thursday, 24 September 2020 
commencing at 5.30 pm 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84357471169?pwd=WjFYSUc4cUlRZGN1Nmw3WE5pK0k4dz09 
 

Meeting ID: 843 5747 1169  Password: 595607 
 

One tap mobile 
+442030512874, 84357471169#, 0#, 595607# United Kingdom 
+442034815237, 84357471169#, 0#, 595607# United Kingdom 
 

Dial by your location 
+44 203 051 2874 United Kingdom 
+44 203 481 5237 United Kingdom 
 

Meeting ID: 843 5747 1169  Password: 595607 
 

The items to be discussed at this meeting are attached.   
 

Yours sincerely, 
 

 
 

Anne-Marie Bond 
Interim Chief Executive 
 
 

(All members are summoned to attend the meeting of the Council in accordance with the requirements of 
the Local Government Act 1972 and Standing Orders A5.) 

 

 

Together Torbay will thrive 

 

https://itunes.apple.com/gb/app/mod.gov/id508417355?mt=8
https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=uk.co.moderngov.modgov&hl=en
http://appworld.blackberry.com/webstore/content/26429152/?lang=en&countrycode=GB
mailto:governance.support@torbay.gov.uk
http://www.torbay.gov.uk/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84357471169?pwd=WjFYSUc4cUlRZGN1Nmw3WE5pK0k4dz09


(2) 

Meeting of the Council 
Agenda 

 
1.   Opening of meeting 

 
 

2.   Apologies for absence 
 

 

3.   Declarations of interests 
 

 

(a)   To receive declarations of non pecuniary interests in respect of 
items on this agenda 

 

 For reference:  Having declared their non pecuniary interest 
members may remain in the meeting and speak and, vote on the 
matter in question.  A completed disclosure of interests form should 
be returned to the Clerk before the conclusion of the meeting. 
 

(b)   To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect 
of items on this agenda 

 

 For reference:  Where a Member has a disclosable pecuniary 
interest he/she must leave the meeting during consideration of the 
item.  However, the Member may remain in the meeting to make 
representations, answer questions or give evidence if the public 
have a right to do so, but having done so the Member must then 
immediately leave the meeting, may not vote and must not 
improperly seek to influence the outcome of the matter.  A 
completed disclosure of interests form should be returned to the 
Clerk before the conclusion of the meeting. 
 
(Please Note:  If Members and Officers wish to seek advice on any 
potential interests they may have, they should contact Governance 
Support or Legal Services prior to the meeting.) 
 

4.   Communications  
 To receive any communications or announcements from the: 

 
i) Civic Mayor – this will include a presentation on the work of 

the Food Alliance; 
 
ii) Leader of the Council (including an update as the Council’s 

representative on the Heart of the South West Joint 
Committee); 

 
iii) Overview and Scrutiny Co-ordinator; and 
 
iv) Interim Chief Executive. 
 

5.   Members' questions (Pages 5 - 7) 
 To respond to the submitted questions asked under Standing Order 

A12. 
 

   



(3) 

6.   Adult Care Strategic Agreement between Torbay Council, 
Devon Clinical Commissioning Group and Torbay and South 
Devon NHS Foundation Trust 

(Pages 8 - 49) 

 To consider a report and recommendation of the Cabinet, which 
seeks agreement of the Adult Care Strategic Agreement. 
 

7.   Proposed disposal of Council owned land at Hatchcombe (Pages 50 - 59) 
 To consider a report and recommendation of the Cabinet, which 

seeks approval for the disposal of Council owned land at 
Hatchcombe. 
 

8.   Civic Mayor and Deputy Civic Mayor  
 In accordance with the Council’s Standing Orders (A9.1) to select 

the Civic Mayor-Elect and Deputy Civic Mayor-Elect for the 
2021/2022 Municipal Year. 
 

9.   Appointment of Independent Person to assist the Council 
Standards Committee 

(Pages 60 - 61) 

 To confirm the appointment of an Independent Person to assist the 
Council Standards Committee. 
 

10.   Appointment of Audit Committee Vice-Chairman  
 To confirm the appointment of Councillor Kennedy as Vice-

Chairman of the Audit Committee. 
 

 Instructions for the press and public for joining the meeting  
 If you are using an iPad you will need to install Zoom which can be 

found in the App Store.  You do not need to register for an account 
just install the software.  You only need to install the software once.  
For other devices you should just be taken direct to the meeting. 
 

 

 Joining a Meeting  
 Click on the link provided on the agenda above and follow the 

instructions on screen.  If you are using a telephone, dial the Zoom 
number provided above and follow the instructions.  (Note: if you 
are using a landline the call will cost up to 13p per minute and from 
a mobile between 3p and 55p if the number is not covered by your 
inclusive minutes.) 
 
You will be placed in a waiting room, when the meeting starts the 
meeting Host will admit you.  Please note if there are technical 
issues this might not be at the start time given on the agenda. 
 
Upon entry you will be muted and your video switched off so that 
only the meeting participants can been seen. When you join the 
meeting the Host will unmute your microphone, ask you to confirm 
your name and update your name as either public or press.  Select 
gallery view if you want see all the participants. 
 
If you have joined the meeting via telephone, your telephone 
number will appear on screen and will be displayed for all to see 
until the Host has confirmed your name and then they will rename 
your telephone number to either public or press. 
 

 



(4) 

 Speaking at a Meeting  
 If you are registered to speak at the meeting and when it is your turn 

to address the Meeting, the Chairman will invite you to speak giving 
the Host the instruction to unmute your microphone and switch your 
video on (where appropriate) therefore please pause for a couple of 
seconds to ensure your microphone is on. 
 
Upon the conclusion of your speech/time limit, the Host will mute 
your microphone and turn off your video. 
 

 

 Meeting Etiquette for Registered Speakers - things to consider 
when speaking at public meetings on video 

 

  Background – the meeting is public and people will be able to 
see what is behind you therefore consider what you will have 
on display behind you. 

 Camera angle – sit front on, upright with the device in front of 
you. 

 Who else is in the room – make sure you are in a position 
where nobody will enter the camera shot who doesn’t want to 
appear in the public meeting.  

 Background noise – try where possible to minimise 
background noise. 

 Aim to join the meeting 15 minutes before it is due to start. 
 

 



Meeting of the Council, Thursday, 24 September 2020 
 

Questions Under Standing Order A12 
 
A member may only submit three questions for consideration at each Council Meeting.  Each 
member will present their first question in turn, when all the first questions have been dealt with 
the second and third questions may be asked in turn.  The time for member’s questions will be 
limited to a total of 30 minutes. 
 
First Round 
 

Question (1) by 
Councillor Dart to 
the Cabinet 
Member for 
Children’s Services 
(Councillor Law) 

Torbay Council has been running a campaign to recruit more Foster 
Carers. Has this campaign borne fruit? How does this latest recruitment 
campaign compare to the last 5 years of recruitment in Torbay? 

Question (2) by 
Councillor Mandy 
Darling to the 
Cabinet Member for 
Corporate and 
Community 
Services (Councillor 
Carter) 

Can you please compare and contrast the number of agency workers that 
we have in Torbay now compared to 12 months ago? 

Question (3) by 
Councillor Doggett 
to the Cabinet 
Member for Adults 
and Public Health 
(Councillor 
Stockman) 

Before the Pandemic, the ICO administered grants to grassroots 
organisations across Torbay to improve health outcomes?  Now we are 
past the first stage of the virus how are these organisations being helped 
to achieve the improved health outcomes of the grant? 

Question (4) by 
Councillor O’Dwyer 
to the Cabinet 
Member for 
Finance (Councillor 
Cowell) 

Could the Cabinet Member for Finance please provide details as to the 
original contract cost and the projected cost this financial year for the 
contract to collect and store victims put in place for the Covid-19 outbreak. 
Can they also advise how we have ensured value for money in this 
process. 
 

Question (5) by 
Councillor Brown to 
the Cabinet 
Member for 
Infrastructure, 
Environment and 
Culture (Councillor 
Morey) 

Could the Cabinet Member for Infrastructure, Environment and Culture 
inform the Council on work being undertaken to ensure properties that are 
being let as AirBnB or holiday lets are paying for commercial waste 
collections rather than exploiting the residential waste collections. 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



Question (6) by 
Councillor Kennedy 
to the Cabinet 
Member for 
Corporate and 
Community 
Services (Councillor 
Carter) 

In March this year there was a warning from central government of a 
marked decrease in Court availability which could have affected the 
Council’s ability to legally move members of the Gypsy and Traveller 
community on from unauthorised encampments.   To assist the Police in 
dealing with unauthorised encampments local authorities across the 
peninsula were asked to identify a point of contact and a tolerated 
stopping site.  An email from the Chief Executive informed all Councillors 
that a tolerated temporary site would be available and that the site would 
provide water, sanitation and waste facilities.  It appears that none of this 
happened due to our failure to carry out a risk assessment.  Please 
explain why as an administration you believe the tax payers of Torbay 
should pay for the thousands of pounds worth of costs due to your failure 
to act appropriately, and as promised, towards an ethnic minority group. 

Question (7) by 
Councillor Dudley 
to the Cabinet 
Member for 
Corporate and 
Community 
Services (Councillor 
Carter) 

The police and Torbay Council were able to work together to use section 
61 powers to move travellers on from Paignton Green with just two hours’ 
notice, was this the first time that these powers had been used in Torbay 
and how do we plan to use them going forward? 

Question (8) by 
Councillor Pentney 
to the Cabinet 
Member for 
Children’s Services 
(Councillor Law 

Reports from Ofqual suggest that the Secretary of State for Education 
decided to take the least favoured option out of three to manage GCSE 
and A-Level results in England. I would welcome your thoughts on what 
impact this has had on our students across Torbay, both receiving these 
results and those who will be taking these exams in 2021. 

Question (9) by 
Councillor Atiya-
Alla to the Cabinet 
Member for 
Economic 
Regeneration, 
Tourism and 
Housing (Councillor 
Long) 

As at 21 August 2020, Torbay had 20,000 people registered for the 
furlough scheme this summer.  The furlough scheme is due to end on the 
31 October.  I am aware that the Council have been making 
representations for a bespoke furlough scheme for the tourism and 
hospitality sector.  What representations have the Council made in recent 
weeks to champion this cause? 

Question (10) by 
Councillor Doggett 
to the Cabinet 
Member for 
Economic 
Regeneration, 
Tourism and 
Housing (Councillor 
Long) 

Can you please confirm that the CPO for Crossways was served this 
summer?  

Page 6



Question (11) by 
Councillor Bye to 
Cabinet Member for 
Infrastructure, 
Environment and 
Culture (Councillor 
Morey)  

Overnight parking and encampments on Ilsham Marine Drive and the road 
by Meadfoot Beach are causing a nuisance to local residents, also deter 
residents and visitors from enjoying this beautiful part of Torbay.  Litter 
and worse is left behind.  Vehicles are unsightly.  When will Torbay 
Council introduce a properly enforceable traffic regulation order so this is 
no longer a problem? 
 

 
Second Round 
 

Question (12) by 
Councillor O’Dwyer 
to the Cabinet 
Member for 
Finance (Councillor 
Cowell) 

Following the proposal to increase the children's services budget by 
approximately £10million pounds for this financial year in February, we are 
currently reporting an underspend of £1.5million this financial year. How 
will this underspend be used? 

Question (13) by 
Councillor Kennedy 
to the Cabinet 
Member for 
Economic 
Regeneration, 
Tourism and 
Housing (Councillor 
Long) 

In the last financial year you received £1.9m in Government funding to 
provide, and I quote, “upfront infrastructure improvements which need to 
be delivered in the very early development process but the cost of which is 
putting a barrier in the way of development”.  Among the specific 
infrastructure items listed for Collaton St Mary is 350 metres of new 
sewage pipe.  The money has now been largely spent and Collaton St 
Mary have still not received the 350 metres of sewage pipe the LRF was 
to fund.  With all the development that is due to descend on this area, 
when will the residents be benefitting from this new pipe?   

 
Third Round 
 

Question (14) by 
Councillor 
O’Dwyer to the 
Cabinet Member 
for Infrastructure, 
Environment and 
Culture (Councillor 
Morey) 

One of the regular complaints and issues raised by the authority with the 
former Tor2 waste and recycling contract was that the compensation to 
the authority for missed collections was that if approximately 20 homes 
were missed in a single day it then didn’t matter how many more were 
missed as it was a set small fixed compensation fee.  Therefore there was 
no incentive for the service provider to catch up that day, and in some 
cases the waste and recycling would be left until the following week.  This 
led to cases of rubbish strewn across roads and associated smell. 
Could Cllr Morey please provide details on the penalties and service 
levels set out in the contract with Swisco especially in regards to rubbish 
collections and indicate that this has been rectified in the new Swisco 
contract.  

 

Page 7



 

 
 
Meeting:   Cabinet and Council Date:  22 and 24 September 2020 
  
Wards Affected:   All 
 
Report Title:   Adult Care Strategic Agreement between Torbay Council, Devon 

Clinical Commissioning Group and Torbay and South Devon NHS 
Foundation Trust  

 
Is the decision a key decision? Yes 
 
When does the decision need to be implemented?  01 October 2020 
 
Executive Lead Contact Details: Councillor Stockman, Cabinet Member for Adult 

Services and Public Health 
jackie.stockman@torbay.gov.uk 01803 851255 

 
Supporting Officer Contact Details: Joanna Williams, Director of Adult Social Services, 

01803 207175, joanna.williams@torbay.gov.uk 
 

 
1. Proposal and Introduction 
 
1.1 This is the Adult Care Strategic Agreement (ACSA) which sets out the way in which 

Torbay Council and Devon Clinical Commissioning Group (the CCG) will commission 
services from Torbay and South Devon NHS Foundation Trust (the Trust).  The 
present agreement covers a three year period starting April 2020. 

 
1.2 This replaces the Annual Strategic Agreement (ASA) and is in line with the Risk 

Share Agreement that has been signed by the parties in [ 1.1 ] covering the same 
period.    
 

1.3 As noted in the report an improvement plan is in place and will be monitored whilst 
in the light of the Covid-19 pandemic previously used performance indicators will be 
kept under review with targets set for 2021/22 as a base-line for activity is 
established.  
 

1.4 The in-situ agreement has been used as the basis for the three year agreement and 
remains familiar in its approach and content.  It has fully been reviewed and refreshed 
and significant changes are recorded below.   

  
2. Reason for Proposal 
 
2.1 The Adult Care Strategic Agreement sets out the strategic direction for services that 

is designed to maximise choice and independence for those requiring adult social 
care and support.  It sets out the objectives which the Council and the CCG require 

Page 8

Agenda Item 6

mailto:jackie.stockman@torbay.gov.uk
mailto:joanna.williams@torbay.gov.uk


the Trust to meet and forms the basis on which performance can be monitored and 
managed. 

 
2.2 The Risk Share Agreement which has been signed by all three parties named in the 

Adult Care Strategic Agreement sets out the financial commitments and liabilities of 
the partners.   This underpins the ACSA and ensures a focus on improvement and 
delivery of the commitments made within it.  

 
2.3 The agreement has been produced to reflect the ongoing work and delivery in 

respect of commitments such as Making Safeguarding Personal, Learning 
Disabilities Peer Review, Carers’ Strategy whilst incorporating the further 
improvements along with transformational changes through the Improvement Plan 
which forms part of this agreement and a key focus for monitoring and performance 
delivery in the first year. 

 
2.4 The governance structure under which this agreement will operate was approved by 

Cabinet on the 11th August 2020 and is incorporated in section 8 of the agreement  
 
2.5 Attention is brought to those section of significant change listed below: 
 

Section Section Name Changes to 2020 – 2023 Agreement  

2.1 New Models of Care  

In addition to the ongoing commitment to the further 
development to our vibrant community and voluntary 
sector a focus is being brought to additional early 
intervention and prevention initiatives, the upskilling of staff 
and increased use of digital technologies to enable them 
and clients/patients  

2.3 Learning Disabilities  

Section 2.3 has been updated to reflect the ongoing joint 
working that is taking place between Devon system 
partners in the delivery of the joint strategy for adults with 
a learning disability.   

2.4 Mental Health  

Section 2.4 has been updated to provide increased detail 
on the Mental Health priorities being focused upon and the 
joint working arrangements to deliver them. 

3.1 
Activity Baseline 
and Planning 
Assumptions  

Section 3.1 recognises the impact of Covid-19 on the 
activity and demand numbers resulting in baseline 
numbers not being available for the first year of the 
agreement 

3.3 
Operational 
Delivery, Monitoring 
and Oversight  

Section 3.3 highlights the governance and use of the 
Adult Social Care Improvement Plan to monitor in the first 
year of the agreement in recognition of one of the 
challenges of Covid-19 skewing activity data and 
subsequent target setting.  

3.4 
Adult Social Care 
Workforce  

Section 3.4 details the approach being taken to 
improvement initiatives in Adult Social Care  

4.8 Reviews  

Section 4.8  highlights the activity in respect of reviewing 
packages of care optimising the work that has been done 
on strengths based and community led support 
development 

 
 
   

Page 9



3. Recommendation(s) / Proposed Decision 
 
That the Cabinet recommend to the Council: 
 
3.1  that the Adult Care Strategic Agreement between Torbay Council, Devon Clinical 

Commissioning Group and Torbay and South Devon NHS Foundation Trust set out 
at Appendix 1 to the submitted report be approved.  

 
3.2 that in the event there are minor changes requested by the Board of the Torbay and 

South Devon NHS Foundation Trust which meets subsequent to the decision of the 
Council, the agreement or negotiation of the minor changes be delegated to the 
Director of Adult Social Services, in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Adults 
and Public Health. 

 
4. Supporting Information 
 
4.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Board meeting of the 16 September 2020 will have 

considered the document and their comments will be presented to the Cabinet 
meeting  

 
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix 1:  Adult Care Strategic Agreement 2020_23 
 

Page 10



1 
 

 
  
 
 
 
 

 
Adult Care Strategic Agreement  
 

Between:  
 

Torbay Council  
and  
Torbay and South Devon NHS Foundation 
Trust  
 
For the delivery of:  
 

Adult Social Care April 2020 to March 2023 
 
 

Final  
 
DRAFTING NOTE:  
 THIS DOCUMENT REMAINS DRAFT UNTIL APPROVED BY BOTH PARTIES.  

IT  IS BEING CONSIDERED BY BOTH THE TRUST AND THE COUNCIL 
THROUGH STANDARD GOVERNANCE PROCEDURES 

 
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1



2 
 

Contents 
 
Introduction .................................................................................................................. 4 

1.1 Scope of the Agreement ............................................................................................... 4 

1.2 Summary of services to be provided ............................................................................. 4 

2 Adult Social Care Commissioning Priorities ........................................................ 6 

2.1 New Models of Care ...................................................................................................... 6 

2.2 Autism Spectrum Conditions ......................................................................................... 6 

2.3 Learning Disabilities ...................................................................................................... 7 

2.4 Mental Health ............................................................................................................... 8 

2.5 Social Care Workforce ................................................................................................... 9 

2.6 Safeguarding Adults ...................................................................................................... 9 

2.7 Carers ............................................................................................................................ 9 

3 Current Services ............................................................................................... 11 

3.1 Activity Baseline and Planning Assumptions ............................................................... 11 

3.2 Projected activity ......................................................................................................... 11 

3.3 Operational Delivery, Monitoring & Oversight ........................................................... 12 

3.4 Adult Social Care Workforce ....................................................................................... 12 

3.5 Safeguarding ................................................................................................................ 13 

3.6 Delivery and Performance Management: Adult Social Care Services ......................... 14 

4 Service developments ....................................................................................... 15 

4.1 Social Care Workforce Plan ......................................................................................... 15 

4.2 Strengths Based Approach .......................................................................................... 16 

4.3 New Approaches to Person Centred support Planning .............................................. 16 

4.4 Self-Directed support – including Individual Service Funds and Direct Payments ..... 16 

4.5 Integrated Care Model (ICM) Implementation ........................................................... 16 

4.6 Services for people with learning disabilities including Autism .................................. 18 

4.7 Residential and Day Services for Older People ........................................................... 18 

4.8 Reviews ....................................................................................................................... 18 

4.9 Key Milestones ............................................................................................................ 19 

4.10 National: CQC (Care Quality Commission) .................................................................. 19 

4.11 Local: Torbay and South Devon NHS Foundation Trust .............................................. 19 

5 Finance and Risks ............................................................................................ 20 

5.1 Financial Risk Share ..................................................................................................... 20 

5.2 Efficiency Risks ............................................................................................................ 20 

5.3 Risks pertinent to Adult Social Care expenditure include ........................................... 20 

6 Client Charges .................................................................................................. 21 

6.1 Power to Charge .......................................................................................................... 21 

Page 12



3 
 

6.2 Residential and Non Residential Charges .................................................................... 21 

6.3 Carers .......................................................................................................................... 21 

6.4 Universal Deferred Payments ..................................................................................... 22 

7 Governance ...................................................................................................... 23 

7.1 Adult Social Care Governance ..................................................................................... 23 

7.2 Consultation, engagement and involvement process ................................................. 23 

7.3 Programme Management ........................................................................................... 24 

7.4 Key Decisions ............................................................................................................... 24 

7.5 Governance of Placed People ..................................................................................... 24 

7.6 Individual Roles and Responsibilities .......................................................................... 24 

7.6.1 Torbay Council Executive Lead Adults ......................................................................... 24 

7.6.2 Director of Adult Social Services ................................................................................. 24 

7.6.3 Deputy Director of Adult Social Services ..................................................................... 25 

7.6.4 Systems Director ......................................................................................................... 25 

7.6.5 Organisational Roles and Responsibilities................................................................... 25 

7.7 Emergency cascade ..................................................................................................... 25 

7.8 Annual Audit Programme ............................................................................................ 25 

Annex 1: Performance Measures: .............................................................................. 26 

Annex 2: Adult Social Care Improvement Programme oversight ................................ 30 

Annex 3: Strategic and Micro-commissioning functions – review at ASC Leadership 
group 32 

Annex 4: Emergency Cascade ................................................................................... 34 

Annex 5: Annual Audit Programme ............................................................................ 35 

Annex 6: Risk Share Agreement (2020-23) ................................................................ 37 

 37 

Annex 7: Adult Social Care Governance in Torbay .................................................... 38 

Annex 8: Glossary of Terms ....................................................................................... 39 

Page 13



4 
 

Introduction  

The Strategic Agreement is the working document between Torbay Council (the 
Council) and Torbay and South Devon NHS Foundation Trust (the Trust) which 
supports the Partnership Agreement between the organisations for the delivery of 
Adult Social Care within Torbay. The Adult Care Strategic Agreement (ACSA) is set in 
the context of the Risk Share Agreement established between the Council, the Trust 
and Devon Clinical Commissioning Group (the CCG). The ACSA is aligned with the 
Council’s Community and Corporate Plan and the Trust’s Operational Plan. 
 
The organisations have a history of working collaboratively within Torbay and are part 
of the Devon-wide Sustainability and Transformation Partnership. The organisations 
continue to evidence their strong partnership role in working on both local and Devon-
system-wide solutions to use resources to best effect. 
 
This close working is being further developed with the ambition for the formation of a 
Local Care Partnership within the term of this agreement which will create further links 
and alignment with the Devon health and cares system.   
 

1.1 Scope of the Agreement 

The scope of this agreement is Adult Social Care (ASC) services provided for the 
population for which Torbay Council is accountable. This will include the statutory 
duties and obligations in respect of the delivery of ASC services for people who are 
resident in Torbay but will also include people placed in accommodation in other areas 
of the country where national policy dictates that the Council remains the accountable 
authority. 
 
In addition to the services described in this Agreement, the Trust provides other 
services, including those commissioned by the CCG, NHS England specialist, dental, 
and screening teams.  
 
Torbay Council also commissions additional services from the Trust including, the 
Drug and Alcohol Service and the Lifestyles, Health Visiting, and School Nursing 
service which are commissioned by the Council’s Public Health team.  
 
Within the integrated approach of the Torbay care system the parties work jointly to 
ensure effective and efficient delivery of services. The Trust holds the budget for areas 
such as Autism, Learning Disabilities and Mental Health. Aspects of these are 
delivered through other organisations such as Devon Partnership Trust. The system 
partners will collaborate to ensure a continuous improvement approach to the delivery 
of care. Roles and responsibilities continue to be reviewed to ensure best use of 
resources and optimised outcomes. 
 

1.2 Summary of services to be provided 

The services provided under this agreement will include: 
 

 Provision of information and advice to people enquiring about ASC services;  

 Assessment of need for social care services, including the provision of 
rehabilitation and reablement services, and an Emergency Duty Service; 

 Commissioning and monitoring individual packages of care, including case 
management assessments under the Mental Capacity Act, Liberty Protection 
Safeguards (formerly Deprivation of Liberty safeguarding) and engagement in 

Page 14



5 
 

Court proceedings; 

 Monitoring of the quality, performance, and cost of services provided by Trust 
staff and other providers; 

 Safeguarding the needs of adults and older people living in Torbay. This 
includes delivery of Torbay Council’s operational safeguarding 
responsibilities, servicing the Torbay Adult Safeguarding Board, investigations 
of individual safeguarding concerns and whole homes investigations; 

 Voluntary and Community Sector development and coordination in support of 
independence, self-care, enablement and improved quality of life; 

 Ensuring that services are provided in a cost effective way whilst still offering 
choice where people are entitled; 

 Collection of income for chargeable services, including and assessment of an 
individuals’ financial circumstances and ensuring that people are receiving 
any welfare benefits to which they are entitled; 

 The collection, collation and submission of activity information and 
performance returns as required operationally, by the Council and to meet 
local, regional and national requirements and statistical returns; 

 The collection, collation and submission of financial returns and budget 
reports as required operationally, by the Council and to meet local, regional 
and national requirements and statistical returns; 

 Benchmarking Torbay Council’s performance and cost against similar Local 
Authority areas, England and the South West; 

 Input to the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) and housing needs 
assessment as required to ensure strategic commissioning plans and market 
management is based on relevant, accurate, quality and timely data; 

 Procurement and monitoring and management of the local market to ensure 
sustainable, good quality and affordable services within the strategic 
approach set by the Council’s Adult Social Care and Partnership 
Commissioning Team in conjunction with Devon Clinical Commissioning 
Group through decision making structures as recorded in the governance 
within this document 

 Delivery of agreed plans including Adult Social Care-Improvement Plans and 
those agreed through the Better Care Fund including the commitments to 
optimise the application of the Disabled Facilities Grant. 

Page 15



6 
 

2 Adult Social Care Commissioning Priorities 

The Council’s Community and Corporate Plan One Torbay:  Working for all Torbay 
(2019-2023) includes the ambition 
‘We want Torbay and its residents to thrive’ and the mission 
‘To be a Council that supports, enables and empowers its residents, our communities 
and our partnerships.’ 
The Adult Care Strategic Agreement is designed to support the delivery of the plan.   It 
is the Trust’s responsibility to ensure the underpinning commissioning activities and 
associated delivery are supported by timely and accurate data collection and 
information provision including, finance and performance management information on 
independent and community voluntary sector contracts and Service Level Agreements 
held by the Trust. Key areas for development during the period of this contract include: 
 

2.1 New Models of Care 

 Wellbeing and independence and supporting people to lead the most fulfilling 
lives that they are able to are at the heart of the approach to care along with 
using strengths based approaches and community assets to achieve this with 
those being supported.  

 Living Well@Home development programme being a market wide 
programme in support of the new model of care; 

 Support the development of a vibrant voluntary and community sector within 
the context set by commissioners 

 Reducing demand through prevention and early intervention and asset based 
approaches 

 Accelerated innovation particularly in relation to digital offers to support the 
delivery of timely and proportionate interventions, upskilling of care staff to 
support the workforce to work to the top of its license, and to provide holistic, 
multidisciplinary interactions with clients and patients  

 A focus on co-design with the community and voluntary sector and Torbay 
residents. 

 A focus on improving independence and reducing demand via a redesign of 
community services with the community and voluntary sector, including a 
‘front door’ via the community and voluntary sector. 

 Council investment in high quality options to support the local care market. 
This will support independence and the most vulnerable, including projects in 
extra care housing and residential/nursing for those with dementia.  

 A focus on One Public Estate, to maximise the use of statutory sector estate 
and funds for the benefit of people in Torbay 

 Refreshed governance and performance, to hold all organisations to account 
and within the Council Governance processes. 

 
These will be supported by the development of a detailed approach to Information and 
Advice provision (in relation to ASC services), a strategic plan for the support of 
enablement of individuals by the use assistive technology alongside a refreshed 
strategy for the development of the Voluntary and Community Sector. 

 
 
 

2.2 Autism Spectrum Conditions  

 During 20/21, provide Autism awareness training for social care staff who 
come into contact with people with autism and ensure compliance with the 

Page 16



7 
 

Core Capabilities Framework commissioned by Health Education England, 
which is a key objectives for workforce development in delivering the Autism 
Strategy. 

 During 20/21, ensure that staff of organisations and agencies commissioned 
by the Trust who come into contact with people with autism have appropriate 
knowledge and skills, through the provision of Autism Spectrum Conditions 
awareness training, positive behaviour support and crisis planning; 

 Provide specialist training for key staff in the trust who come into contact with 
people with Autism Spectrum Conditions, including reasonable adjustments. 

 To actively contribute towards the reduction in people admitted to hospital 
under the Mental Health Act by improving understanding, skills, knowledge 
and support in community services, responses from specialist Approved 
Mental Health Practitioners (AMHPs), access to community treatment reviews 
and the Blue Light Protocol 

 Provide training and support to social care staff on completing Care Act 
assessments for people with Autism Spectrum Conditions ; 

 Improve the offer of Peer Support for people with Autism Spectrum 
Conditions through seed funding of small peer support groups 

 Key partner and in the development and delivery of the Joint Learning 
Disability and Autism Strategy and action plan, following the Association of 
Directors of Adult Social Services (ADASS) Peer Review. 

 Develop and sustain an Autism Spectrum Conditions Programme Board 
(during 2020) being mandatory requirement. 

 Strengthen and improve the quality of the supported living market for people 
with Autism Spectrum Conditions diagnosis through procurement of 
Supported Living Shared Hours and Supported Living 1:1 Hours contract. 

 Improve access to employment, education and welfare benefits through the 
provision of accessible information and advice services.  

 Assessments for people with Autism Spectrum Conditions; 
 

2.3 Learning Disabilities  

Torbay Council, along with Plymouth City Council, Devon County Council and Devon 
CCG is signed up to a joint strategy ‘Living Well with a learning disability 2018-2021’ 
for adults with a learning disability, including young people who are approaching 
adulthood.  
https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/documents/s21597/Joint%20Strategy%20for%20Adult
s%20with%20Learning%20Disability%20FINAL.pdf 
 
The refreshed strategy (2018-2022) sets out what we will do together across Devon, 
Plymouth and Torbay that is best enabled by working at scale. This currently includes: 
 

 Working more closely together to have more appropriate housing that meets 
the range of needs of people with learning disabilities.  

 Working together with local communities, Housing Authorities, District 
Councils to understand how people are currently supported, and also where 
they want to live and how they want to be supported. This joint understanding 
of what is needed in the future to help people achieve what matters to them, 
will enable us to produce a market development plan. 

 Supporting more people with a learning disability in Torbay to develop their 
skills and find and keep a job, and also increasing the number of opportunities 
for employment across Devon, Plymouth and Torbay. 

 Working together to improve access to healthcare for people with learning 
disabilities, so that they have improved physical and mental health outcomes 

Page 17

https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/documents/s21597/Joint%20Strategy%20for%20Adults%20with%20Learning%20Disability%20FINAL.pdf
https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/documents/s21597/Joint%20Strategy%20for%20Adults%20with%20Learning%20Disability%20FINAL.pdf


8 
 

and live longer as a result.  The Learning Disability Treat Me Well work and 
the new Quality Checkers have been looking at accessibility of treatment for 
people with learning disabilities across Devon and including Torbay hospital. 

 Increasing the opportunities in communities for people to live as 
independently as possible, which means that a wide range of services which 
are easy to use for people with a learning disability. 

 Supporting young people with learning disabilities to develop independent life 
skills, so that they can lead fulfilling lives as adults. 

 Ensuring people with learning disabilities are safe in their communities  

 Making sure that we always listen to people with learning disabilities and their 
families/carers about what matters to them, and include them in decisions 
about their lives and also the development of services and strategies. The 
development of the Torbay Learning Disability Partnership Board will support 
and be a vehicle for this. 

 Supporting carers to be able to care throughout the different stages of their 
lives. 

 Developing a diverse and sustainable supported living market for people with 
learning disabilities  

 

2.4 Mental Health  

Torbay Council has statutory responsibilities for providing services to eligible people 
with poor mental health under the Mental Health Act 1983, NHS and Community Act 
1990, and the Care Act 2014, which are delegated to the Torbay & South Devon NHS 
Foundation Trust.  These include: 
 

 Approval and provision of ‘sufficient’ numbers of Approved Mental Health 
Practitioners (AMHP); 

 Guardianship under section 7; 

 Financial and Budgetary responsibilities for the whole Mental Health budget, 
including activity below assigned to DPT. 
 

Mental Health services will be delivered by the Trust in partnership specialist providers 
as appropriate, for example Devon Partnership Trust. This is in compliance with 
Torbay Council’s statutory duties under the Care Act, Mental Health Act and other 
relevant legislation, including: 
 

 Aftercare under section 117; 

 Care management services, including operational brokerage of social care 
packages. 

 Implementation of the Community mental health framework 
 

The priorities for the commissioned service in 2020/23are outlined in the Adult Mental 
Health, Joint Delivery Plan between the Council, Torbay & South Devon NHS 
Foundation Trust (TSDFT) and its partners.  Close working with other commissioners 
such as the CCG will see this developed and monitored through Adult Social Care 
Performance Committee as recorded in the governance structure.  
 

 Trust finance team support for improvement plan and development and 
implementation of cost improvement projects.  Torbay Council 
Commissioners to agree improvement plan and development of cost 
improvement projects with partners  

 Support for integrated personal care planning and brokerage including 
implementing and embedding systems plans.  

Page 18



9 
 

 Review and redesign of all current assigned staff roles within the Adult Mental 
Health contract to ensure value for money and focused approach to delivering 
better outcomes for people with mental ill health. 

 A sustainable supported living market for people with a Mental Health 
diagnosis through procurement of Supported Living Shared Hours and 
Supported Living 1:1 Hours contract 

 A review of under 65s MH services, including focus on asset and community 
based wellbeing and prevention 

 

2.5 Social Care Workforce  

 Ensure sufficient professional leadership and support to changes to the 
workforce and implementation of new ways of working; 

 Develop capacity within the workforce to deliver the services and provide 
contingency working and engagement in co-producing new approaches to 
care work e.g. Trusted Assessor models. 

 The opportunity for continued development of the potential for shared 
arrangements across the Devon Integrated Care System is kept under review 
not only in respect of commissioning but for aligned service provision to 
support further enhancements to effective and efficient service delivery.  
Local initiatives include: 

 Continued development of working arrangements for clarity of roles and 
responsibilities with the growing independent and voluntary sector; 

 Supporting engagement with independent and voluntary sector providers 
through the multi-provider forum and associated groups. 

 
 

2.6 Safeguarding Adults  

The Trust will deliver the operational safeguarding duty on behalf of Torbay to: 
 

 Prevent abuse and neglect wherever possible, understand the causes of 
abuse and neglect, and learn from experience; 

 Ensure all organisations embed learning from incidents and case reviews; 

 Improve multi-agency practice and processes to improve individual safety 
planning as part of care and support plans and safeguard adults in a way that 
supports choice and control and improves their lives; 

 Provide information and promote public awareness to enable people in the 
community to be informed so that they know when, and how to report 
suspected abuse. 

 Work with strategic commissioners and in partnership with independent and 
community voluntary sector organisations to identify and address issues early 
preventing escalation through focused service improvement planning to 
reduce and streamline the number of current safeguarding processes.  

 

2.7 Carers  

In line with the priorities established through the redesign of Carers’ services the Trust 
will continue to deliver operational duties to support carers on behalf of Torbay to: 
 

 Provide Carers’ Assessments / Health and Wellbeing Checks for Carers of 
Adults   

 Provide support to maintain Carers’ health and wellbeing  

 Provide Carers’ advocacy;  

Page 19



10 
 

 Promote identification and support of Carers across the wider health/social 
care community; 

 Provide support to commissioners about market development to meet the 
needs of Carers and those of the people they care for 

 Ensure Carers’ performance indicators are met.  

 Take steps to address reduced performance in the Personal Social Services 
Survey of Adult Carers in England 2018-19; 

 Fulfil the Carers’ Strategy 2018-21 

 Implement NICE ‘Supporting Adult Carers’ guidance 
 
In late 2020, consultation will take place with all registered Carers in Torbay about the 
priorities for the multi-agency Carers’ Strategy 2021-24.  

Page 20



11 
 

3 Current Services  

3.1 Activity Baseline and Planning Assumptions 

Under the terms of this agreement the Trust will be providing, long term packages of 
care to adults and older people with social needs. In the tables below, this activity 
(initial business planning baseline) is broken down across age groups and expenditure 
type. The impact of Covid-19 is still being assessed and the baseline assumptions will 
be kept under review and updated appropriately in discussion between the signatories 
to this agreement.  
 

ASC - Long Stay Clients Aged Under 65 (snapshot March 2020) 
 

    
Expenditure Type 

Cost per 
week 

Clients’*’ Ave Client Cost 

Daycare £22,039 141 £156 

Direct Payments £98,309 285 £345 

Dom Care £51,504 362 £142 

Nursing Long Stay £6,185 6 £1,031 

Residential Long Stay £137,346 139 £988 

Residential Long Stay (Full 
cost) 

£750 1 £750 

Supported Living £110,283 224 £492 

Total £426,416 995 £429 
 

 

 
ASC - Long Stay Clients Aged Over 65 (snapshot March 2020) 

 
    
Expenditure Type 

Cost per 
week 

Clients’*’ Ave Client Cost 

Daycare £6,410 71 £90 

Direct Payments £34,691 119 £292 

Dom Care £124,610 627 £199 

Nursing Long Stay £51,354 73 £703 

Nursing Long Stay (Full cost) £4,547 7 £650 

Residential Long Stay £279,092 403 £693 

Residential Long Stay (Full 
cost) 

£43,528 64 £680 

Supported Living £17,205 27 £637 

Total £561,436 1,311 £428 
 

‘*’ Please note that some clients have more than one expenditure type and therefore, 
total client numbers will be lower than the sum of the individual types. 
 

3.2 Projected activity 

As part of the Trusts’ business planning process, the Trust’s Torbay Locality (System) 
will formulate plans to deliver the capacity required in 2020/21 and annually thereafter 
within the parameters of the Trust’s business planning process and the associated 

Page 21



12 
 

savings requirements. The service development and saving plan work streams 
developed through this process will report and be agreed through both the Trust’s 
Transformation & Assurance Group and the Adult Social Care Improvement Board 
with ongoing monitoring and performance through the Adult Social Care (ASC) 
Performance Committee.   
 

3.3 Operational Delivery, Monitoring & Oversight  

Delivery will be monitored through local operational meetings to include the 
Performance Committee and the Integrated Governance Meeting, the Trust Board, 
Adult Social Care (ASC) Improvement Board with committees for strategy, delivery 
and performance reporting in with their roles including  financial run-rates and 
performance targets both activity and financial.   
 
The Trust will operate autonomously to take any management action that is necessary 
to correct performance and which can be taken within the parameters of this 
Agreement. However, should exceptional circumstances arise, through excess 
demand or other external factors not taken into account when the budget allocations 
underpinning this agreement were made, the impact and any corrective actions will be 
discussed through the Adult Social Care Improvement Board. 
 
The performance indicators and targets associated with this agreement have 
previously been set having considered the outturn figures of the previous year.  With 
the exceptional situation in respect of the Covid-19 pandemic it is not possible to set 
an operational baseline for the first year of the agreement due to the distortion of 
activity and redirection of resources to manage the presenting demand.   However, the 
Adult Social Care Improvement Plan has clear targets attached to it.  Therefore the 
performance of this agreement will be monitored in the first year against the delivery of 
the Adult Social Care Improvement Plan.  It is acknowledged there will be significant 
system changes, service development and pathway redesign; this along with the 
modelling of the Covid-altered system will enable the metrics and measures 
associated with this agreement to be reviewed and reset appropriately in readiness for 
year two. 
 
This approach is further supported by the fact that the contract has always included 
and worked to the Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework (ASCOF) measures.  The 
Department of Health and Social Care commissioned a review of the measures in 
January 2020.   The output of that review is still awaited along with the associated 
measures for the 2020/21 which have been disrupted by the Covid-19 pandemic. 
 
Impact on Quality, Activity and Cost Including Cost Improvement programme of 
improvement and savings plans developed by the partners is attached as Annex 2. 
 

3.4 Adult Social Care Workforce  

The provision of integrated health and social care services through local 
multidisciplinary teams has proved to be an effective model for delivery, able to 
respond to customer needs swiftly, facilitate rehabilitation, and avoid admissions to 
residential care and hospital where ever possible. However, the existing model relies 
on a level of staff resources which will not be sustainable in future given the additional 
demands.  An alternative model is being designed which will have an impact on how 
staff are deployed. 
 
The new care model will be built on a strengths-based approach, aligning entirely to 
the model in use within the voluntary sector and Integrated Personal Commissioning.  

Page 22



13 
 

Adopting this approach across social care, health services, and the private, voluntary 
and independent sectors will bring a synergy of approach not previously seen.  For 
social care this is building upon the previous ‘Personalisation Strategy’. This is being 
developed with initiatives e.g. Strengths Based Working and Making Every Contact 
Count (MECC) and will underpin a more from time based and care based provision to 
outcomes based commissioning.  Independent Service Funds (ISF) are a key tool in 
developing the ‘no decision without me’ and National Voices ‘I-statements’.  
 

3.5 Safeguarding  

The Trust will continue to deliver the delegated responsibilities of Torbay Council 
regarding Safeguarding Adults. The Care Act 2014 put Safeguarding Adults into a 
statutory framework for the first time from April 2015. This placed a range of 
responsibilities and duties on the Local Authority with which the Trust will need to 
comply.  This includes requirements in the following areas: 
 

 Duty to carry out enquiries; 

 Co-operation with key partner agencies; 

 Safeguarding Adults Boards; 

 Safeguarding Adult Reviews; 

 Information Sharing; 

 Supervision and training for staff. 
 
Accountability for this will sit with the Torbay Safeguarding Adults Board (TSAB). This 
is a well-established group that will provide a sound basis for delivering the new 
legislative requirements. The Board will incorporate the requirements into its Terms of 
Reference and Business Plan for the life of this agreement, ensuring that all relevant 
operational and policy changes are in place. 
 
Regular performance analysis from all partner agencies will be reported to the TSAB to 
give a clear picture of performance across the agencies. The Council will ensure high 
level representation on the Board by the Director of Adult Social Services and 
Executive Lead for Adult Social Care. 
 
In order to maximise capacity Torbay SAB will work closely with the Devon SAB with 
an increased number of joint sub-committees and shared business support. In addition 
to this, to provide internal assurance that the Trust is fulfilling its Safeguarding Adult 
requirements, the Board will have a sub-committee which will oversee performance. 
This will have a particular focus on training and performance activity. 
 
The Council is fully committed to the national ‘Making Safeguarding Personal’ agenda. 
This is designed to measure Safeguarding Adult performance by outcomes for the 
individual, rather than reliance on quantitative measurement of timescales for 
safeguarding meetings.  
 
The Trust also has delegated responsibility as a provider of Adult Social Care services 
to ensure that it participates as a full partner in the TSAB and meet all regulatory 
requirements in safeguarding adults and children. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 23



14 
 

3.6 Delivery and Performance Management: Adult Social Care Services  

The present arrangements for ASC delivery through an integrated health arrangement 
delivered by the Torbay & South Devon NHS Trust have been benchmarked against 
similar authorities in its family group (comparator group).  The results show in 2018/19 
Torbay spends around £405 per head of adult population, compared to an average of 
£363 for our comparator group1 (this is the net current expenditure from 2018/19 Adult 
Social Care Finance Return (ASC-FR) - per head of adult population). 
 
It is to be noted that the integrated nature of the Torbay’s system whilst delivering 
better outcomes for people does mean that direct comparisons do not always provide 
an unambiguous picture. With this in mind a series of additional measures are included 
within the performance indicators attached as Annex 1. 
 
Torbay benchmarks very well in the following areas: 

 Service user reported quality of life 

 Service user reported social contact 

 Service user reported control over daily life 

 Service user reported satisfaction with care & support 

 Carer reported ease of finding information 
 

Torbay has opportunities for improvement in the following areas: 

 Adults in contact with secondary mental health services in paid employment 

 Permanent admissions to residential and nursing care aged 18-64 

 Service users receiving direct payments 

 Adults with a learning disability living in their own home or with their family 
 

Audit South West’s January 2017 audit report looking at the Trust’s care assessment 
process has confirmed that “the Trust’s arrangements for the assessment of the care 
needs of referred individuals, and determination of eligibility to receive publicly funded 
care and support is in line with the Care Act 2014 and are appropriate. Staff are able to 
access a range of training and operational support mechanisms to help them 
discharge these key responsibilities.” 
 

Opportunities for improvement are as follows  

 Permanent admissions to residential and nursing care for 18-64 years old’s 

 Adults with a learning disability in paid employment 
 

 
 
 

                                                
 
 

1 Torbay’s family group of comparator authorities are groups of authorities that central government consider have similar 
patterns of deprivation and age profiles etc. 
N.B. It should be noted that the ASA applies to the delegation of authority and activity in respect of ASC and does not include 
Children’s services.  The ICO’s use of funds to deliver these services should therefore focus on ASC when comparisons are 
made with other authorities. 
[Torbay and South Devon NHS Foundation Trust Final Internal Audit Report: Care Assessment Process Report Reference: 
TSD08/17 January 2017. Source Page 34 CIPFA Local Authority budget comparator profile Torbay Comparator Report 
November 2016  

Page 24



15 
 

4 Service developments  

Key developments in the way ASC services are provided, and any changes in what 
services will be provided, are outlined in the following paragraphs. Where appropriate 
the planning and implementation of these changes will involve internal and external 
consultation with key stakeholders as set out in the Adult Social Care Improvement 
Plan which will drive service improvements and is managed through the ASCPB. 
Where appropriate the Decision Tracker will also clarify accountability for decision 
making in these developments. 
 
The new care model will target resources to those in greatest need and provide a 
universal service to allow people to be as independent as possible and be connected 
with their local community. The new care model will require significant change and we 
will need to ensure that we support and engage staff and managers through the 
required change. 
 
To support the resilience and sustainability of services, we will work closely with the 
independent and voluntary sector in relation to co-production of new ways of working 
that provide solutions for ‘what matters to me’. 
 
The Ageing Well Programme has piloted a number of initiatives and the evaluation of 
these will offer additional input for the further development of services that provide 
alternatives to traditional social care services, increase the independence of people 
and encourage preventative measures and behaviours. Areas that will be addressed 
include Information and Advice, Assistive Technology and Community Building.  
 
 

4.1 Social Care Workforce Plan 

The Trust will ensure that Registered Social Worker’s comply with national standards 
under the oversight of the regulatory board Social work England and delivery of Care 
Act compliance is a key deliverable for our social care staff. We will develop and 
implement a workforce plan for social care services which focuses on: 
 

 Working in partnership with our community, addressing the issues faced by 
our most vulnerable members; 

 Revisiting our approach to ensure we are inclusive with users, carers and 
community organisations – using strengths-based approaches as our 
principal theoretical approach and operating model; 

 Promoting the reputation of social work in Torbay through engagement with 
users and the co-design of our approach; 

 Supporting staff to reach their potential using a capability framework; 
responding to the Social Work health check and by providing support to 
improve resilience; 

 Delivering a high quality, safe and well-respected service through use of 
quality, safety and governance processes. 

 
TSDFT have arrangements in place for structures such as flexible working, staff 
welfare services and exit interviews. Despite increasing allocation lists, Social Workers 
do not report unmanageable caseloads or sickness due to stress. Although Social 
Workers do find time to attend training, and they find it useful, they feel it needs 
improvement in terms of specialist areas and opportunities for professional 
development. This is a specific area for attention in the Adult Social Care Improvement 
plan. 

Page 25



16 
 

 
 

4.2 Strengths Based Approach  

The Care Act 2014 requires local authorities to consider the person’s own strengths 
and capabilities to help achieve their desired outcomes.  This includes exploring what 
support might be available from their wider support network or within the community to 
help in the provision of care and support. In practice, this means operationalising 
strengths-based approaches into the care model. 
 
A strengths-based approach continues to be embedded and scaled up within the new 
Health and Wellbeing Teams. It will become the golden thread which runs through all 
our interactions with people, both in terms of how we approach care and support in our 
teams and how our teams in turn approach care and support with the people they 
serve. To support the deployment of a strengths-based approach we have developed 
the following principles for the implementation: 

 
 We will empower staff to use their skills and experience; 

 We will let go of care management approaches; 

 We will focus on community involvement; 

 We will concentrate on the assets and strengths of the people who use our 
services, our staff and our partners. 

 

4.3 New Approaches to Person Centred support Planning 

During the course of this agreement the Trust will continue to explore new approaches 
to undertaking support planning. This will include furthering existing schemes for 
people with learning disabilities and undertaking wider proof of concept work in 
partnership with independent, voluntary and third sector organisations. 
 

4.4 Self-Directed support – including Individual Service Funds and Direct 

Payments 

Self-directed support using initiatives such as Individual Service Funds alongside 
Direct Payments will be encouraged. The infrastructure will be developed and 
embedded further as part of the ASC Improvement Plan to enable people to identify 
their options, make informed decisions and have mechanisms that make the right thing 
to do the easy thing to do. 

 
The opportunities to explore and develop Individual Service Funds will be addressed 
within the term of this agreement.  This refresh will be managed through the Adult 
Social Care Transformation Group and its reporting to the Adult Social Care 
Improvement Board. 

 
 

4.5 Integrated Care Model (ICM) Implementation 

The Integrated Care Model is being developed in line with the areas in its blueprint 
listed below.  The Health and Wellbeing teams referred to in the Operational Plan will 
be providing a range of functions details of which are below: 
 
1. Connect people with things that help them live healthy lives in their community.  

Page 26



17 
 

2. Support people to stay well and independent at home with a focus on targeting 
frailty much earlier. Maximise a person’s wellbeing and independence for as long as 
possible and support people to self-care.  
3. Work together to proactively avoid dependency and escalation of illness with a focus 
on supporting people with highest needs.  
4. Connect people with expert knowledge and clinical investigation to maximise 
outcomes and cost effectiveness of care. Move away from hospital based services 
using technology to access advice and guidance. Invest expertise in supporting 
resilience and quality in care homes.  
5. Access to urgent and crisis services should be made as easy as possible where it is 
required.  
6. End of Life Care (EoLC) will be embedded into all core elements of this model.  
 
Improved Health and Wellbeing  
Improved health of population 
Improved quality of life 
Reduction in health inequalities  
 
Enhanced Quality of Care  
Improved experience of care 
People feel more empowered 
Care is personal and joined up 
People receive better quality care  
 
Value and Sustainability  
Cost-effective service model 
Care provided in the right place at the right time 
Demand is well managed 
Sustainable fit between needs and resources 
 
The Health and Wellbeing teams referred to in the Operational Plan will be providing a 
range of functions as part of the ICM which will include: 
 

 Encourage self-care, healthy lifestyles and maintain independence 

 Help to grow community assets/develop resilience; 

 Assessment, support planning and professional social work support; 

 Provide rehabilitation; 

 Provide nursing care; 

 Integrated medical management of people with complex co-morbidities; 

 Reactive care coordination of people with deteriorating complex health issues 
and frail elderly; 

 Continue to embed and mainstream Learning Disabilities and working with 
the voluntary sector to support the delivery of this 

 Proactive care co-ordination of people with complex needs and frail elderly; 

 Proactive integrated long term conditions support; 

 High quality discharge support from hospital to home, integrated planning and 
seamless handover of care; 

 Development of a fully integrated out of hospital care system for Torbay and 
South Devon, providing onward care which is focused on improving 
independence. 

 Provide falls prevention services; 

 Provide palliative care as part of end of life care pathway. 
 

Page 27



18 
 

In addition to the Torbay & South Devon NHS Foundation Trust’s internal governance 
structures the impact of these changes on community based care roll-out will be 
monitored and assured through the Adult Social Care Improvement Board in respect of 
the community activity  
 

4.6 Services for people with learning disabilities including Autism  

In October 2017, Torbay Council and the Trust took part in a Learning Disability Peer 
Challenge Review; which was an opportunity for all partners to understand what we do 
well, areas for improvement and will support us together in setting our strategic aims 
and delivery for Autism and Learning Disability services for the next three years. 
 
As part of the next stage of the process, an action plan was developed with the 
participation of key partners.  The Plan focussed on the 5 key areas that emerged from 
the Peer Review Team visit: 
 

 Information and Needs Assessment  

 Training and Employment  

 Engagement and Partnership Board  

 Commissioning and Market for the Future  

 Working in Partnership  
 

The success and work to date under these 5 key areas, outlined in Sections 2.2 and 
2.3, will be consolidated and embedded going forwards, with the Trust as a key 
partner in the delivery of this plan. 
 

4.7 Residential and Day Services for Older People  

This area of work will be led by Council commissioners under the umbrella of the ASC 
Improvement Plan and will incorporate: 
 

 Engagement with / implementation of the market management blueprint to 
support the long-term reshaping of the local market for ASC; 

 Council led development of new residential care resources with nursing 
capability to deliver highly capable complex care within projected banded 
rates; 

 Managed reduction of low-capability residential care beds as more people are 
supported through new models of care to live well at home for longer; 

 Increase in day time / night time replacement care options for people with 
dementia; 

 Planned engagement and support to increase capability / quality within all 
care homes for older people in order to meet complex needs of older people 

 Targeted engagement to support the delivery of residential / nursing beds 
within local authority banded rates 

 Targeted engagement to support market resilience and understand / mitigate 
market risks in order to maintain supply in line with demand. 

 

4.8 Reviews  

In 2017/18 the Quality Assurance and Improvement Team (QAIT) was formed by The 
Trust. This team monitors the quality of care, offering support to care home providers 
to improve their services and in 2019 the scope was extended to supported living and 
domiciliary care services.  It incorporates both nursing and occupational therapy input.  
QAIT will develop further as part of the 3-year adult social care improvement plan in 

Page 28



19 
 

order to develop and implement a system-wide quality improvement approach for all 
commissioned and directly-provided adult care and support services. 
 

4.9 Key Milestones  

The Adult Social Care Improvement Plan and the associated Improvement Programme 
Management Office hold the key milestones for the work being undertaken.  
Additionally, further milestones will be set in line with the performance indicators 
developed once the existing and ongoing impact of Covid-19 is established.  These will 
be collectively monitored through governance structure in annex 8. 
 

4.10 National: CQC (Care Quality Commission)  

The Commission make sure health and social care service providers provide people 
with safe, effective, and compassionate high-quality care and encourage care services 
to improve.  They monitor, inspect, and regulate services to make sure they meet 
fundamental standards of quality and safety and publish what they find, including 
performance ratings to help people choose care. 
 

4.11 Local: Torbay and South Devon NHS Foundation Trust  

The Trust will provide quality assurance of both its own integrated business activity 
and the services it commissions including those covered by the Partnership 
Agreement for Adult Social Care.  A quality and safety report to the Trust’s Board will 
include all social care quality, safety, and performance metrics quarterly.  Interim 
performance monitoring is via the Adult Social Care Performance Committee; which 
will receive performance reports and updates on ad hoc issues. 
 
A Quality Assurance Framework has been developed and is now in use with 
independent and voluntary sector providers to provide assurance in regard to the 
quality of care provided to people in their own homes and in care homes 

Page 29



20 
 

 

 

5 Finance and Risks 

5.1 Financial Risk Share  

The Risk Share Agreement (RSA) (Annex 6) was developed as part of the transaction 

creating the ICO, and took effect from its inception on 1st October 2015. The Risk 

Share has been updated for further periods and the in-situ agreement covers the term 

2020-23 which this Adult Care Strategic Agreement aligns with.  

 

The share of financial risk going forward is a function of the wider performance of the 

Trust rather than specifically in relation to Adult Social Care. The financial baseline 

from the Council and the CCG, the commissioning funders of the ICO, are set out in 

the revised Risk Share Agreement 2020_23 which includes the Better Care Fund and 

the Improved Better Care Fund.  The RSA 2020_23 is monitored through the Adult 

Social Care Improvement Board which includes all parties to the RSA and the Adult 

Care Strategic Agreement. 
 

5.2 Efficiency Risks 

 Delayed delivery of financial benefits arising from the Covid delayed 
implementation of the revised care model / Adult Social Care Improvement 
Plan  

 Rate of expenditure in both ASC and Placed People  

 Levels of agency and temporary staff costs 

 Increasing complexity of care needs for people being cared for in community 
settings whilst achieving care closer to home  

 

5.3 Risks pertinent to Adult Social Care expenditure include 

 Scale of required savings 

 (insufficient) Capacity and quality in the domiciliary care market 

 Sufficiency and pricing in  the care home market 

 Community support for change 

 Impact of case law re Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards and imminent 
transfer to Liberty Protection Safeguards in April 2022 

 Increasing complexity of presentations linked to an ageing population and 
known areas of increased deprivation within Torbay.  The recent CV19 
pandemic has also impacted on service related expenditure via fast track 
discharges from hospital and increased cost relating to staff and PPE within 
provider settings. 

 Increasing referral rates due to the increasing age of the population 

Page 30



21 
 

6 Client Charges  

6.1 Power to Charge 

With the introduction of the Care Act, the Council now has a ‘power to charge for 
services’ whereas previously, there was a ‘duty to charge’ for long term 
residential/nursing care and a ‘power to charge’ for non-residential care. 
 
The Council has made the decision to utilise the ‘power to charge’ for both residential 
and non-residential services.  The Trust will discharge this power on behalf of the 
Council and in doing so will apply sections 14 and 17 of the Care Act  2014 and the 
Care and Support (charging and assessment of resources) regulations 2014. 
 

6.2 Residential and Non Residential Charges 

Charges for residential services will be amended each April as directed by the 
Department of Health and Social Care updated rates.  In addition to this charges can 
also be amended in light of increases to the cost of care. 
 
Charges per unit of care for non-residential care services will be set in accordance with 
the Council’s charging policy.  
 
Client contributions are based on the level of care a person requires and an 
assessment of their financial circumstances, including capital and income.  The Trust 
will ensure that individual financial assessments are updated at least annually (but 
more frequently where the financial circumstances of an individual service user are 
known to have changed during the course of the year). 
 
Consequently, the charges made to an individual may change in the course of a year if 
there are changes in their financial circumstance or the level of care they require. 
The Trust will ensure that all clients in receipt of a chargeable service receive a full 
welfare benefit check from the Finance and Benefits team and an individual financial 
assessment in person for new assessments where possible.  
 
There is no charge for Intermediate Care or Continuing Health Care services. 
 

6.3 Carers 

The Trust will continue to deliver their legal requirements for Carers of Adults in Torbay 
and the priorities agreed in the Carers’ Strategy 2018-21:  
 

 Carers’ Assessments / Health and Wellbeing Checks for Carers of Adults. 
2019-20 targets have been met, but 2020-21 will undoubtedly have been 
affected by the coronavirus pandemic. 

 Support to maintain Carers’ health and wellbeing  

 Carers’ advocacy;  

 Promoting identification and support of Carers across the wider health/social 
care community, with national recognition of our work in our local hospitals 

 Support to commissioners about market development to meet the needs of 
Carers and those of the people they care for, particularly around replacement 
Care 

 Ensuring Carers’ performance indicators are met.  

 Implementing NICE ‘Supporting Adult Carers’ guidance 
 

Page 31



22 
 

We are working with our STP partner organisations to embed the ‘Commitment to Carers’, 
where each organisation commits to having an action plan to address the following seven 
principles: 
 
1: Identifying Carers and supporting them 
2: Effective Support for Carers 
3: Enabling Carers to make informed choices about their caring role 
4: Staff awareness 
5: Information-sharing 
6: Respecting Carers as expert partners in care 
7: Awareness of Carers whose roles are changing or who are more vulnerable 

 
In late 2020, consultation will take place with all registered Carers in Torbay about the 

priorities for the multi-agency Carers’ Strategy 2021-24.  
 

Torbay Carers’ Strategy Action Plan 2018 – 2021: 
https://www.torbayandsouthdevon.nhs.uk/uploads/torbay-carers-strategy-action-plan-2018-
2021.pdf 
 

 

6.4 Universal Deferred Payments 

The Care Act 2014 established a requirement for a universal deferred payments 
scheme which means that people should not be forced to sell their homes in their 
lifetime to pay for the cost of their care. 
 
A deferred payment is, in effect, a loan against the value of the property which has to 
be repaid either from disposal of the property at some point in the future or from other 
sources.  The scheme has now been running since April 2015 as all councils in 
England are required to provide a deferred payment scheme for local residents who 
move to live in residential or nursing care, own a property and have other assets with a 
value below a pre-determined amount (currently £23,250).  They must also have 
assessed care needs for residential or nursing care. 
 
The Council’s deferred payments policy is now fully implemented as part of the policy 
the Trust has the ability to recover any reasonable costs it may incur in setting up and 
reviewing a Deferred Payment Arrangement in addition to the cost of any services 
provided. These management costs may be included in the deferred payment total or 
be paid as and when they are incurred. 
 
The interest rate payable on deferred payments is advised by the Department of 
Health and Social Care and reviewed every six months.  Interest will be added to the 
balance outstanding on the deferred arrangement on a compound daily basis, in 
accordance with the regulations. 

Page 32

https://www.torbayandsouthdevon.nhs.uk/uploads/torbay-carers-strategy-action-plan-2018-2021.pdf
https://www.torbayandsouthdevon.nhs.uk/uploads/torbay-carers-strategy-action-plan-2018-2021.pdf


23 
 

7 Governance  

The Torbay Adult Social Care Governance structure is set out in Annex 7  
 

7.1 Adult Social Care Governance 

A revised governance structure has been adopted reflecting the additional focus on 
performance and delivery of the ASC Improvement Plan and the transformation sought 
by the partners.   The ASC Performance Committee’s Terms of Reference include: 
 

 To assist the development of the strategic direction of ASC services 
supporting the new context faced by the Council and Trust in terms of public 
sector reform, reducing public resources and potential devolution; 

 To receive reports and review performance against indicators and outcomes 
included in the ACSA providing and/or participating in regular benchmarking 
activities; 

 To monitor action plans against any in-year areas of concern, raising 
awareness to a wider audience, as appropriate; 

 To discuss and determine the impact of national directives translating 
requirements into commissioning decisions for further discussion and 
approval within the appropriate forums.  

 To discuss and develop future ACSAs; co- ordinate the production of the 
Local Account. 

 To escalate issues of concern or delivery to the Adult Social Care 
Improvement Board  

 

7.2 Consultation, engagement and involvement process  

As the Accountable Authority the Council will lead consultation processes where the 
need for change is being driven by the needs and requirements of the Council beyond 
those of delegated activities to the Trust.  The Trust is committed to supporting the 
consultation and engagement processes the Council undertakes in relation to service 
changes recognising the Council’s statutory duty and good practice. 
 
As a provider the Trust will engage all stakeholders in service redesign and quality 
assurance including, playing an active role with Torbay Council Health Overview and 
Scrutiny Board.  Additionally the Trust will be engaged with the CCG Locality Teams 
where the primary focus will be on consultation in regard to NHS services. 
 
Where service changes will result in variation in the level or type of service received by 
individual service users, the Trust will comply with statutory guidance on the 
review/reassessment of care needs and ensure that those service users affected are 
given appropriate notice of any changes. 
 
The Council, the Trust, and the CCG will continue to support the role of Healthwatch 
and the community voluntary sector in involving people who use services in key 
decisions as well as service improvement and design.  The Council also expects the 
Trust to engage actively with service users and the voluntary sector in Torbay in 
developing new service solutions.  This will apply irrespective of whether the service 
changes are driven by the necessities of the current financial environment or the need 
to ensure the continual evolution and development of services. 
 
 
 

Page 33



24 
 

7.3 Programme Management  

Oversight of delivery and programme management for the programmes of work set out 
in this Agreement will be provided through the Adult Social Care Improvement 
Programme Management Office.  Delivery will monitored through the governance 
arrangements set out above. 
 

7.4 Key Decisions  

Whilst this agreement places accountabilities on the Trust for the delivery and 
development of ASC Services, the Trust may not act unilaterally to make or enact 
decisions if they meet the criteria of a ‘key decision’ as described in the standing 
orders of the Council or are included in a list of ‘Reserved Items’ shared between the 
parties as part of the agreement. 
 
This requirement reiterates section 22.3 of the Partnership Agreement under which 
services were originally transferred from the Council to Torbay Care Trust. Key 
decisions must be made by the Council in accordance with its constitution. In Schedule 
8 of the Partnership Agreement a key decision is defined as a decision in relation to 
the exercise of council functions, which is likely to: 
 

 Result in incurring additional expenditure or making of savings which are 
more than £250,000; 

 Result in an existing service being reduced by more than 10% or may cease 
altogether; 

 Affect a service which is currently provided in-house which may be 
outsourced or vice versa and other criteria stated within schedule 8 of the 
Partnership Agreement. 

 
In addition when determining what constitutes a key decision consideration should be 
given to the possible level of public interest in the decision. The higher the level of 
interest the more appropriate it is that the decision should be considered to be a ‘key 
decision’. 
 
 

7.5 Governance of Placed People  

Placed people (those funded via Health or joint Health and Social Care) have their 
care arrangements managed via Torbay and South Devon NHS Trust. Placed People 
activity sits within the Torquay Integrated Service Unit (ISU) and the governance 
arrangements within the ISU. Monthly performance reports are submitted to the CCG. 
 
 

7.6 Individual Roles and Responsibilities  

7.6.1 Torbay Council Executive Lead Adults  

 
The role of Executive Lead is held by an elected Member of Torbay Council. As part of 
their duties they will sit as the Council’s representative on the Trust Board to provide 
oversight, challenge, and liaison. 

7.6.2 Director of Adult Social Services  

 

Page 34



25 
 

The role of Director of Adult Social Services (DASS) is a statutory function, and is 
fulfilled by a senior officer of the Council who is accountable for all seven 
responsibilities of the role set out in statutory guidance dated May 2006.  However 
responsibility for Professional Practice and Safeguarding are delegated to the Deputy 
DASS employed within the professional practice directorate of the Trust. 

7.6.3 Deputy Director of Adult Social Services  

 
The role will provide professional leadership for social care services and lead on 
workforce planning, implementing standards of care, safeguarding, and will chair the 
Adult Social Care Performance Committee.  The role also oversees the Deprivation of 
Liberty Safeguards (soon to be the Liberty Protection Safeguards) and Guardianship 
arrangements in Torbay.  

7.6.4 Systems Director  

 
The role will provide provider executive input and oversight as part of the governance 
structure for the contract. 

7.6.5 Organisational Roles and Responsibilities  

 
The partnership working inherent within the Torbay model is supported by further 
clarification of the organizational roles pertaining to the local authority as the 
commissioning partner of the contract and the Trust as the providing partner including 
commissioning responsibilities within its delegated activities. A range of activities for 
reference is included in Annex 3 – Strategic and Micro-commissioning functions. 

 

7.7 Emergency cascade  

Please see Annex 4 for details of Torbay Council’s Emergency Planning Roles in 
Council’s Emergency cascade.  The Trust will be expected, through best endeavours, 
to identify social care senior officers to be part of emergency cascade, to coordinate 
delivery of ASC in an emergency situation. 

 

7.8 Annual Audit Programme  

Audit South West (ASW) as the Internal Audit provider to Torbay and South Devon 
NHS Foundation Trust will undertake the following actions and requirements:- 
 

 Consult with the Director of Adults Social Services (DASS) of Torbay council 
on proposed internal audit coverage; 

 Provide to the DASS copies of assignment reports that relate to control 
arrangements for Adult Services; 

 Provide an annual report to the DASS on the adequacy and effectiveness of 
the overall system of internal control for the Trust, and in particular, those 
areas directly affecting Adult Services. 

 
Detail is included in Annex 5. 
 
 

Page 35



26 
 

Annex 1: Performance Measures:  

 

The 2018/19 Performance Description column gives a basic verbal comparison with the benchmarking figures (England, SW Comparator Group) which are 
currently only available to 2018/19 

 

 Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework (ASCOF) 

 Better Care Fund 

 Local Measures  
 

P
age 36



27 
 

 
 

P
age 37



28 
 

 

P
age 38



29 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 39



30 
 

Annex 2: Adult Social Care Improvement Programme oversight  

 

Plan 
reinstatement 

Project Name Desired Outcome 

Amended PoC Review & Insight All PoCs reviewed under Care Act 2014; CLS & strength-based; post-
COVID-19 reinstatement 

New Data  Accessible data for ASC System leadership and operational measurement 

New Training  Transfer of CLS to business as usual; project insights for ongoing 
dynamic training  

Amended Voluntary & Community 
Development 

Understanding the sector; supporting the sector; developing the sector 

Amended Information, Advice & 
Guidance 

Provide comprehensive information and advice about care and support 
services in Torbay  

No change Technology, Aids & 
Adaptions 

Effective use of TEC, aids and adaptions at ASC Front Door and reviewed 
packages of care  

Amended ASC Front Door  Redesign the front door creating effective mechanisms for finding 
solutions for people and their problems which can then demonstrate 
impact in terms of diversions from formal care, delivering good outcomes 
and avoiding adult social care costs 

No change Arranging Support Team 
(2) 

An operational function to allow for arranging all care and the efficient 
discharge of patients to their arranged care, negotiated by the AST, and 
will include an assurance function for timely and effective reviews. 

No change Future Quality & Assurance  Market oversight and provider failure, including undertaking improvement 
work with regulated provider sector and assurance activities that the 
sector is effective. 

No change Extra Care & Housing Capital Development activities (project specific) 

No change Market Shaping Understand the strengths and fragility of the care home market, and to link 
with the homecare market which is equally under pressure. Create ability 
to be bolder and do things differently in to shape the market. 

Amended Effective Social Work 
Practice 

Increase the number of staff supervisions; Reduce the time between 
supervisions taking place; Variance within the staff supervision process 
eliminated; Increase number of staff working in a strengths based way; 
Reduce the length of time a case has been open: review the way staff 
performance is currently measured and reported including the governance 

P
age 40



31 
 

Plan 
reinstatement 

Project Name Desired Outcome 

structure. 

No change Digital & IT Infrastructure: 
Strata 

Understand current business process; strength business process, 
managed and then optimise process using technology; integrating with 
Care Management Systems and national capacity tracker.  

No change Digital & IT Infrastructure: 
ASC Case Management 
System & Beyond 

IT system implementation – replacement of PARIS. 

No change  MH Review Develop a MH approach to provide efficient and effective mental health 
services for Torbay.  

New  Innovation Hub Work with local health and care teams in Torbay, AHSNs, national 
commissioners (NHS England & Improvement, NHSX, Office for Life 
Sciences) and industry to make sure Torbay benefits from innovations 
and to learn about what works from project insights. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 41



32 
 

 

Annex 3: Strategic and Micro-commissioning functions – review at ASC Leadership group  

 

Function/role lead 

Torbay Council 
Strategic 
Commissioning 
function 

Torbay and South 
Devon Trust ASC 
function 

MICRO COMMISSIONING OF PROVIDERS, PROCUREMENT AND BROKERAGE 

Develop and implement operational commissioning plans    

STRATEGIC COMMISSIONING FUNCTION 

Market shaping and developing new providers to fill gaps in provision and oversight of 
decommissioning plans  

  

Market Position statement and Joint Strategic Needs Assessment   

Market mapping   

Gap analysis   

Analysis of sufficiency of supply   

Manage provider failures and market exits   

Strategic Commissioning Strategy   

Proactive strategy to develop the market as a whole   

Market engagement with provider market as a whole   

Run Multi Provider Forum for all providers with strategic themes   

Joint commissioning arrangements with partner organisations and other areas   

Lead on co-design of new service models with providers and stakeholders   

Develop population outcome based commissioning approach for market     

Develop and co-produce Payment by Results mechanisms that encourage sound 
outcomes  

  

Co-ordinate user and carer engagement and consultation   

Contract review and performance management of ASC   

Review budget for ASC and sign-off cost improvement plans related to ASC   

P
age 42



33 
 

Function/role lead 

Torbay Council 
Strategic 
Commissioning 
function 

Torbay and South 
Devon Trust ASC 
function 

Overarching sub contracts between Trust  and other ASC providers, e.g. Care homes, 
community care   

  

Prepare and  agree individual service specifications    

Develop and monitor outcome based commissioning approach for each provider at service 
level 

  

Develop personal outcome based commissioning for each service user   

Contract management & performance review of independent & voluntary sector including, 
grant funding 

  

Proactive quality assurance of individual providers including,  develop/implement service 
improvement plans 

  

Achieving value for money from providers including, cost improvement planning   

 Procurement of ASC providers   

Manage provider failures and market exits including, for service users and relatives/carers 
involved 

  

Individual contracts for care packages    

Brokerage/purchasing processes and brokerage of individual care packages   

Direct payments and personal budgets   

Lead and manage safeguarding processes including, Whole Provider/Provider of 
concern/quality concerns  

  

Resolution of Safeguarding incidents and implementation of lessons learned    

Run and co-ordinate forums for specific provider areas with operational focus e.g. forums 
for care homes 

  

Collection, collation and regular reporting of data on need, demand, supply, cost, workforce 
and performance (Trust and sub-contractors) with interpretation and presentation 

  

Benchmarking of cost/performance of services – own and sub-contracted   

Management of pooled budget to achieve value for money and cost improvement   

 

P
age 43



34 
 

Annex 4: Emergency Cascade  

 

Adult Services Primary Contacts 

Name/Title Emergency Role  

Steve Honeywill  
Head of 
Partnerships and 
People  

Communication with contracted providers of Care and Support for vulnerable 
people. Availability and co-ordination of needs assessment.  

 

John Bryant  
Head of Integration 
and Development  

Safeguarding vulnerable adults and serious case review   

Sharon O’Reilly , 
Deputy Director of 
Adult Social 
Services 

The role will provide professional leadership for social care services and lead 
on workforce planning, implementing standards of care, safeguarding and 
and will chair the Adult Social Care Performance Committee.  The role also 
oversees the Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards and Guardianship 
arrangements in Torbay including authorisation of deprivation of liberty under 
Mental Capacity Act. 

 

Adults Services Secondary Contacts 

Sam Hoskins, Lead 
AMHP 

Assessment and placement, access to services, medication and packages of 
care and place of safety for older people with poor mental health. 

 

Adrian Gaunt, 
Manager Older 
Person Mental 
Health Team 

Assessment and placement, access to services, medication and packages of 
care and place of safety for people under 65 with poor mental health. 

 

 

P
age 44



35 
 

 

Annex 5: Annual Audit Programme  

 
Background 
 
For Torbay Council, Internal Audit is a statutory service in the context of The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015.   
 
From April 2013, organisations in the UK public sector are required to adhere to the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (the 
Standards).  Internal Audit for Torbay & South Devon NHS Foundation Trust is delivered by Audit South West. 
 
Internal Audit Plans 
 
When preparing the internal audit plan for Torbay and South Devon NHS Foundation Trust it is expected that Audit South West will: 
 

 Consider the risks identified in Torbay Council's strategic and operational risk registers that relate to Adult Services; 

 Discuss and liaise with Directors and Senior Officers of Torbay Council regarding the risks which threaten the achievement of the 
Council's corporate or service objectives that relate to Adult Services, including changes and / or the introduction of new systems, 
operations, programs, and corporate initiatives; 

 Take account of requirements to support a “collaborative audit” approach with the external auditors of Torbay Council; 

 Consider counter-fraud arrangements and assist in the protection of public funds and accountability; 

 Support national requirements, such as the National Fraud Initiative (NFI) which is run every two years.   
 

Draft plans, showing proposed audits covering Adult Services should be shared and agreed with Torbay Council's Director of Adult Social 
Services (DASS).  The DASS should also be made aware of planned audit reviews that will provide overall assurance that control 
mechanisms operated by the Trust, but that are key to the workings of Adult Services, are working effectively (e.g. audits of key financial 
systems (payroll, payments, income collection etc.), and corporate arrangements (e.g. procurement, information governance etc.)). 
 
The Audit Plan will not be a "tablet of stone" and changes may be required or advised during the year. 
 
Internal Audit work 
 
Internal audit work should be completed in accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.  Proposed briefs for work covering 
ASC should be shared with the DASS prior to fieldwork commencing. 
 

P
age 45



36 
 

Reporting – Assignments 
 
The DASS will be provided of copies of all final reports that specifically relate to Adult Services.  The DASS will also be provided with 
early sight of draft reports for which the audit opinion is "fundamental weaknesses" or similar.  The Director of ASC will also be provided 
with copied of final audit reports for wider subject areas (e.g. payroll) where the audit opinion is "fundamental weaknesses" or similar. 
 
Reporting – Annual Report 
 
Audit South West will provide the Council with an annual assurance report on the adequacy and effectiveness of the overall system of 
internal control for the Trust, and in particular, those areas directly affecting Adult Services.  It is noted that this assurance can never be 
absolute.  The most that the internal audit service can do is to provide reasonable assurance, based on risk-based reviews and sample 
testing, that there are no major weaknesses in the system of control. 
 
The report should provide: 
 

• A comparison of internal audit activity during the year with that planned, placed in the context of Adult Services; 
• A summary of significant fraud and irregularity investigations carried out during the year and anti-fraud arrangements; and 
• A statement on the effectiveness of the system of internal control in meeting the Council’s objectives. 
 

Together with a summary of the performance indicators set for internal audit and performance against these targets. 
 

P
age 46



37 
 

Annex 6: Risk Share Agreement (2020-23)  

09 March 2020 Record of Decision  

  

 

P
age 47



38 
 

Annex 7: Adult Social Care Governance in Torbay   

 
 

ASC RECOVERY AND TRANSFORMATION WORKSTREAM  ASC PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE 

Oversight of SBA Strategy for ASC  
Training and Development programme for SBA 
Monitoring population health and demand data 

Operating Model redesign program 
Delivery of key market projects 

Market Strategy, co-design and delivery 
Oversight of ASC Delivery Plan 

ASCOF performance 
Locally agreed targets 

MH Act compliance 
Routine financial reporting 

LPS Implementation  
Routine Contract Management report (LW@H) 

Audit of key functions   
QAIT & Safeguarding 

 

 

 

P
age 48



39 
 

Annex 8: Glossary of Terms  

 
Term Acronym  Definition 

Adult Care Strategic 
Agreement  

ACSA 
Strategic Agreement between Torbay Council and Torbay & South Devon NHS Foundation 
Trust for the delivery of Adult Social Care.  

Adult Social Care  ASC 
Care and support provided to adults who need help to live as well as possible with any illness or 
disability they may have.  

Devon Clinical Commissioning 
Group 

CCG The clinical commission group party to the Risk Share Agreement  

Devon Partnership Trust  DPT 
DPT provide specialist mental health and learning disability services for the people of Devon, 
the wider South West region and nationally.  

Integrated Care Model ICM 

Providing Integrated Care helps patients and their providers. It blends the expertise of 
mental health, substance use, and primary care clinicians, with feedback from patients and their 
caregivers. This creates a team-based approach where mental health care and general 
medical care are offered in the same setting. 

Integrated Governance Group  IGG 
The governance body of Torbay and South Devon NHS Trust overseeing Adult Social Care 
delegation and delivery 

Integrated Care Organisation  ICO 

Integrated care happens when NHS organisations work together to meet the needs of their 
local population. They bring together NHS providers, commissioners and local authorities to 
work in partnership in improving health and care in their area.  
In Torbay this refers to Torbay and South Devon NHS Foundation Trust 

Local Care Partnership LCP 

The purpose of a Local Care Partnership is to enable commissioners and providers of health 
and care to work together to better meet the health, care and wellbeing needs of the 
populations they serve within the resources available. The emphasis is on “Local” with an 
absolute focus on supporting what is important to local communities. 

 

P
age 49



  

 
Meeting:  Cabinet Date:  22 September 2020 

Council Date:  24 September 2020 
 
Wards Affected:  Barton with Watcombe 
 
Report Title:  Proposed disposal of Council owned land at Hatchcombe 
 
Is the decision a key decision? Yes 
 
When does the decision need to be implemented?  ASAP 
 
Cabinet Member Contact Details:  Cllr Swithin Long, Cabinet Member for Economic 
Regeneration, Tourism and Housing, Swithin.long@torbay.gov.uk. 
 
Supporting Officer Contact Details:  Liam Montgomery, Director of Assets, Investment 
and Housing, Liam.montgomery@tda.uk.net. 
 

 
1. Proposal and Introduction 
 
1.1 Hatchcombe Nurseries is a housing development site jointly owned by Torbay 

Council and Sanctuary Housing.   
 
1.2 In order to unlock the site and improve the access arrangements to the proposed 

new development Sanctuary are requesting that the piece of land located at the 
lower end of the site to be transferred to them.   

 
1.3 The approved Capital Strategy (February 2020) states that “the policy is to pool all 

receipts from the sale of all assets sold to support the Capital Plan in line with 
funding the Council’s priorities. The current Capital Plan has a capital receipts 
target to support previously incurred expenditure that has not yet been met. All 
capital receipts received should be allocated to support this target and not allocated 
to new schemes”. 

 
2. Reason for Proposal and associated financial commitments 
 
2.1 By transferring this piece of land it will enable the development to come forward 

and maximise the site density. The alternative access options are very expensive to 
facilitate, are not favoured by the Highways team and impact on the density of the 
homes that can be developed.  

 
2.2 The proposals contained in this report will see the Council forgo maximising any 

potential income this land to meet the existing capital receipt target in return for the 
delivery of affordable housing for local people.  

 

 

 

Page 50

Agenda Item 7

mailto:Swithin.long@torbay.gov.uk
mailto:Liam.montgomery@tda.uk.net


3. Recommendation(s) / Proposed Decision 
 
That Cabinet recommends to Council: 
 

(i) To authorise the disposal of the land shaded yellow on the plan at Appendix 1 to 
a Housing Association in return for nomination rights into 100% of the properties 
in perpetuity under the Local Government Act 1972: General Disposal Consent 
Order 2003. 
 

(ii) To delegate authority to the Chief Executive in consultation with the Portfolio 
holder to agree the detailed terms of any transfer including agreed timescales 
for the development. 

 
Appendices 
 
Appendix 1:  Plan of Hatchcombe site  
 
 
Background Documents  
 
Torbay Local Plan: https://www.torbay.gov.uk/media/6836/lp-2012to2030.pdf 
 
Torbay Council’s Housing Strategy: https://www.torbay.gov.uk/media/14432/housing-
strategy.pdf 
 
 
Report Clearance 
 

Report clearance: This report has been reviewed 
and approved by: 

Date: 

Chief Executive Anne-Marie Bond  

   

Chief Finance Officer Martin Phillips  

Relevant Director/Assistant 
Director 

Liam Montgomery 26/08/20 

 
 
  

Page 51

https://www.torbay.gov.uk/media/6836/lp-2012to2030.pdf
https://www.torbay.gov.uk/media/14432/housing-strategy.pdf
https://www.torbay.gov.uk/media/14432/housing-strategy.pdf


 

 
Section 1:  Background Information 

 

 
1. 
 

 
What is the proposal / issue? 
 
Hatchcombe Nurseries site is located between Beechfield Rd/Beechfield Ave 
and Hatchcombe Lane in the Barton area to the North East of Torquay and 
shaded blue on the plan at Appendix 1. The site is jointly owned by 
Sanctuary Housing and Torbay Council and over the past circa 10 years 
there have been a number of attempts to find a viable solution for the site to 
bring forward affordable housing.   
 
Due to its topography Hatchcombe has proved to be a difficult site to develop 
and find a viable engineering solution.  Currently with the only access in and 
out of the site from Beechfield Avenue/Beechfield Place which is narrow and 
certainly far from ideal. Then providing a road network within the site to 
access and the various parts to maximise the density become very difficult 
due to the topography and the cost of this has meant the site has not been 
viable. As part of discussions with the Highways team they have been very 
clear and would much prefer the site to be accessed from this new proposed 
location.  
 
More recently the Council has been approached by Sanctuary who are 
reviewing various options for the site which include the purchase of the land 
shaded green on the plan at Appendix 1, which coupled with the land 
proposed within this report provides a much improved arrangement.  It is 
anticipated the scheme will deliver between 50 – 60 affordable homes with a 
variety of tenures for local people in housing need. 
 
The opportunity for Sanctuary to purchase the land shaded green will allow a 
new design of the scheme to be produced whereby more of the development 
will be located within the bungalow site and access in and out of the new 
development will be from the land currently owned by the Council. 
 
Land would be disposed of with certain conditions and will ensure the site will 
be used for affordable housing in perpetuity unless otherwise agreed by the 
Council. 
 
 

 
2.   

 
What is the current situation? 
 
The Hatchcombe site has been empty for a number of years, it is jointly 
owned by Torbay Council and Sanctuary Housing and has been identified on 
the local plan as a committed site. 
 
As of 8th August 2020 there were close to 1300 households on the Devon 
Home Choice waiting list.  By assisting in the delivery of affordable housing 
on this key site it will help provide much needed affordable housing for local 
people.  
 

Page 52



Torbay Council’s latest Housing Strategy 2020 – 2025 is around ‘improving 
the delivery, affordability and quality of housing in Torbay with an aim to 
‘ensure that all our residents have access to good quality homes, which are 
affordable and meet their particular needs’.  The Housing Strategy’s priorities 
are around: 
 
Housing supply – increase overall supply 
Housing demand – appropriate and affordable housing to meet people’s 
housing needs and aspirations 
Sustainability –improve environmental, economic and social sustainability of 
our housing 
Quality – improve the quality of housing in Torbay Council 
 

 
3. 

 
What options have been considered? 
 
Option 1 to dispose of the land for affordable housing  
 
Option 2 to do nothing and allow the site to remain empty or for a less 
desirable scheme to be delivered 
 
Option 3 sell the site on the open market. 
 

 
4. 

 
What is the relationship with the priorities within the Partnership 
Memorandum and the Council’s Principles? 
 
Community and Corporate plan 
Thriving people – Improve the delivery, affordability and quality of housing 

 
 

 
5. 

 
How does this proposal/issue contribute towards the Council’s 
responsibilities as corporate parents? 
 
 

 
6. 

 
How does this proposal/issue tackle poverty, deprivation and 
vulnerability? 
Ensuring that all our residents have access to good quality homes which are 
affordable and meet their particular needs is a vital part of tackling poverty, 
deprivation and vulnerability. 
 

7. How does the proposal/issue impact on people with learning 
disabilities? 
Ensuring that all our residents have access to good quality homes which are 
affordable and meet their particular needs including those residents with 
learning disabilities. 
 

8. Who will be affected by this proposal and who do you need to consult 
with?  How will the Council engage with the community?  How can the 
Council empower the community? 

Page 53



The proposed development will create a mixed community to meet a broad 
range of housing needs for local people including disabled persons, key 
workers, older people and families. 
 
A wide range of the community will benefit from this proposal as it will 
produce a wide range of housing solutions for local people. 
 

 
 

 
Section 2:  Implications and Impact Assessment 

 

 
9. 
 

 
What are the financial and legal implications? 
 
By transferring the land to a Housing Association the Council will have to 
forgo maximising the potential land value. The Housing Association will be 
required to submit a detailed proposal including a financial appraisal to 
support the transfer of council land for affordable housing. 
 
The approved capital strategy (February 2020)  states that “the policy is to 
pool all receipts from the sale of all assets sold to support the Capital Plan in 
line with funding the Council’s priorities. The current Capital Plan has a 
capital receipts target to support previously incurred expenditure that has not 
yet been met. All capital receipts received should be allocated to support this 
target and not allocated to new schemes”. 
 

 
10.   

 
What are the risks? 
 
Not receiving planning permission for the site must be considered a risk 
albeit it with pre-app discussions the risks would be relatively low. 
 
Any delay in disposing of the land will result in the delay in the purchase of 
the bungalow which is needed to help bring a viable scheme forward. 
 
 

 
11. 

 
Public Services Value  (Social Value) Act 2012  
 
 

 
12. 

 
What evidence / data / research have you gathered in relation to this 
proposal? 
Advice from the Highways department has been sought along with having 
engineers consider a variety of alternative access options.  
 
 

 
13. 

 
What are key findings from the consultation you have carried out? 
Previous/historic engagement with local residents preferred not to access the 
site via the narrow Beechfield Place. 
 

  

Page 54



14. 
 

Amendments to Proposal / Mitigating Actions 
None 
 
 

 

 

Page 55



 
 
Equality Impacts  
 

15. Identify the potential positive and negative impacts on specific groups 

 

 Positive Impact Negative Impact & Mitigating 
Actions 

Neutral Impact 

Older or younger people 
 

  Everyone in housing need are 
eligible to apply for 
accommodation via Devon Home 
Choice and would be able to bid 
on this scheme and because of 
that there will be no differential 

impact.  
People with caring 
Responsibilities 
 

  Everyone in housing need are 
eligible to apply for 
accommodation via Devon Home 
Choice and would be able to bid 
on this scheme and because of 
that there will be no differential 

impact. 
People with a disability 
 

Wheelchair adapted units will be 
delivered on this scheme which 
will have a positive impact on 
those people with a disability who 
are allocated a property. 

  

Women or men 
 

  Everyone in housing need are 
eligible to apply for 
accommodation via Devon Home 
Choice and would be able to bid 
on this scheme and because of 
that there will be no differential 

impact. 
People who are black or 
from a minority ethnic 
background (BME) (Please 

  Everyone in housing need are 
eligible to apply for 
accommodation via Devon Home 

P
age 56



note Gypsies / Roma are 
within this community) 

 

Choice and would be able to bid 
on this scheme and because of 
that there will be no differential 

impact. 
Religion or belief (including 
lack of belief) 
 

  Everyone in housing need are 
eligible to apply for 
accommodation via Devon Home 
Choice and would be able to bid 
on this scheme and because of 
that there will be no differential 

impact. 
People who are lesbian, 
gay or bisexual 
 

  Everyone in housing need are 
eligible to apply for 
accommodation via Devon Home 
Choice and would be able to bid 
on this scheme and because of 
that there will be no differential 

impact. 
People who are 
transgendered 
 

  Everyone in housing need are 
eligible to apply for 
accommodation via Devon Home 
Choice and would be able to bid 
on this scheme and because of 
that there will be no differential 

impact. 
People who are in a 
marriage or civil partnership 
 

  Everyone in housing need are 
eligible to apply for 
accommodation via Devon Home 
Choice and would be able to bid 
on this scheme and because of 
that there will be no differential 

impact. 
Women who are pregnant / 
on maternity leave 

 

  Everyone in housing need are 
eligible to apply for 
accommodation via Devon Home 
Choice and would be able to bid 
on this scheme and because of 

P
age 57



that there will be no differential 

impact. 
Socio-economic impacts 
(Including impact on child 
poverty issues and 
deprivation) 

 

  Everyone in housing need are 
eligible to apply for 
accommodation via Devon Home 
Choice and would be able to bid 
on this scheme and because of 
that there will be no differential 

impact. 
Public Health impacts (How 
will your proposal impact on 
the general health of the 
population of Torbay) 

 

   

16. Cumulative Impacts – 
Council wide 
(proposed changes 
elsewhere which might 
worsen the impacts 
identified above) 
 

 

17. Cumulative Impacts – 
Other public services 
(proposed changes 
elsewhere which might 
worsen the impacts 
identified above) 

 

 
 

P
age 58



LB

7a

1 to 26

Issues

2

17
2

TCBs

Peninsula House

Garage

SUNCREST CLOSE

10

13

El Sub Sta

3

Springhill

12

15
8

16
0

1 6
2

15
6

6

16
6

7

18
0

PO

B
E

E
C

H
FI

E
LD

 P
LA

C
E

6

15
0

100.0m

12

Watercress Bed

Sinks

Watercress Bed

16

Allotment Gardens

11

BEECHFIELD AVENUE

Issues

Issues

19

20

B
E

E
C

H
FI

E
LD

 A
V

E
N

U
E

22

Hatchcombe Lane

37

29

27

49

0 50

Scale: 1:1,250
metres

EM Plan No: EM3573
Date: 25th August 2020
Title: Land North of Beechfield Avenue, Torquay.

TORBAY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY - ASSET MANAGEMENT

Scale: 1:1250
Area: 18,075m²

P
age 59

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix 1



 
 
Meeting:  Council Date:  24 September 2020 
 
Wards Affected:  All 
 
Report Title:  Appointment of Independent Persons to assist the Council Standards 

Committee 

Executive Lead Contact Details:  Councillor Carter, Cabinet Member for Corporate and 

Customer Services; email: Christine.carter@torbay.gov.uk 

Supporting Officer Contact Details:  Amanda Barlow, Monitoring Officer, email: 
Amanda.barlow@torbay.gov.uk 
 

 

1. Purpose and Introduction 

 

1.1 To appoint a new independent person to assist in the consideration of complaints 

against members under the Council’s ‘Code of Conduct for Members’ and to help 

promote and maintain the high standards of conduct by members. 

 

2. Proposed Decision 

 

2.1 That the Council appoints Peter Raven as its independent person for a period 

commencing on 24 September 2020 and expiring on 24 September 2024. 

 

2.2 Reason for Decision 

 

 The Localism Act 2011 requires local authorities to promote and maintain the high 

standards of conduct by members.  Part of the arrangements require each local 

authority to appoint at least one independent person whose views are to be sought 

and taken into account before a decision is made by the Standards Committee on an 

allegation that has been investigated.  The appointments must be confirmed by full 

Council. 

 
Supporting Information 
 

4. Position 

 

4.1 The Council has been operating with one independent person for a little while and 

whilst permissible under the Localism Act 2011 it is felt that having two Independent 

Persons provides greater independence.   

 

4.2 As set out in the ‘Protocol for the Assessment and Determination of Allegation of 

Breaches of the Members Code of Conduct’, the Monitoring Officer when considering 

a complaint of misconduct, may seek the views of the Independent Person.  In 

accordance with this same protocol the subject member may also seek the views of 

Page 60

Agenda Item 9



 

the Independent Person, they are not to represent nor advise the member but they are 

simply to provide a member with a view on the complaint.  Therefore to ensure 

independence in the process of determining a complaint concerning a members 

conduct, officers feel it is appropriate that the Council should operate with two 

Independent Persons thereby negating a situation where both the Monitoring Officer 

and subject member are calling upon the same Independent Person.   

 

4.2 Following an advertisement, Mr Raven was interviewed by the former Monitoring 

Officer and Governance Support Officer who unanimously agreed that Mr Raven was 

suitable for the role and as such their recommendation has been brought to full 

council. 

 

Appendices 

 

None 

 

Page 61


	Agenda
	5 Members' questions
	6 Adult Care Strategic Agreement between Torbay Council, Devon Clinical Commissioning Group and Torbay and South Devon NHS Foundation Trust
	Adult Social Care Strategic Agreement Appendix 1

	7 Proposed disposal of Council owned land at Hatchcombe
	Disposal of Hatchcombe Nurseries - Appendix 1

	9 Appointment of Independent Person to assist the Council Standards Committee

